
FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT 
Board of Trustees Public Meeting 

 
January 10, 2005 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Jerry King called the meeting to order at 4:40 p.m. at Washougal 
Community Library.  He moved the meeting immediately into executive session 
to discuss real estate.  Executive session ended at 5:45 p.m. with no action taken.  
King convened the public meeting at 6:00 p.m. 

 
2. PRESENT 

Chair Jerry King presiding.  Board members: Jack Burkman, Marilyn Butler, 
Karen Peterson, Elena Smith and Rose Smith.  Staff attending included:  Bruce 
Ziegman, Executive Director; Patty Duitman, Operations Director; Doreen 
Turpen, District Resources Director; Sue Vanlaanen, Communications Director; 
Mary Devlin, Community Libraries Director and Becky Pettigrew, recording. 

 
Others staff and citizens attending:  Marcus Brotherton, Anna Cross, Dan 
Duringer, Doris Gressitt, Don and Jane Higgins, Debbie Hose, Janeen Johnson, 
Pat LaCroix, Sean McGill, Barbra Meisenheimer, Shirley Morgan, Peggy Sheerin, 
Caryn Sipos, Jackie Spurlock, Tom Taylor, Ken Topper and Margaret Tweet. 

 
3. AGENDA 

The agenda was approved as presented.   
 
4. MINUTES 

The minutes of the December 13, 2004 meeting were approved as emailed. 
 
5. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

King noted that this is his first meeting as Chair of the library board. 
 
6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Dan Duringer thanked the board for the changes that were made with the Internet 
terminals at Vancouver Community Library (the separation of filtered and 
unfiltered terminals).  He said he thinks it’s a much better situation because young 
people don’t have access to the unfiltered Internet and cannot see the computer 
screens even passing by.  Duringer said he lives in Washougal and asked if a 
similar Internet computer arrangement could be set up in the Washougal library.  
He specifically requested that the unfiltered Internet computers be placed so that 
there could not be inadvertent viewing and that there also be a separate printer for 
the unfiltered computers.  Community Librarian Sean McGill explained the 
current arrangement of Internet computers; access level is determined by age of 
the cardholder.  Currently, Washougal only has one printer.  Duitman said there 
are plans to put a second printer in the branch.  Ziegman said that having separate 



FVRL Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes, January 10, 2005 Page 2 

printers and computers for filtered/unfiltered is something that we are planning 
for the branch.   
 
Tweet said that when she was at the Washougal branch in March 2004, a man was 
viewing nudity on a computer while children with mothers were coming in for 
storytime.  Tweet said that later, she went to the library’s printer to get materials 
and saw another patron’s printout that had nudity on it.  Tweet confirmed that the 
printouts were not illegal.  At that time, the printouts came out face-up.  She 
suggested that labeling the trays would help because she didn’t know what printer 
tray was hers.  King said staff continues to work on solutions to these issues.  
Tweet said she had heard something about a library in Phoenix where a child 
molester was accessing illegal materials.  The city council in Phoenix hired extra 
people to monitor people’s Internet use and stopped giving access to sexually 
explicit sites.  Tweet said that the library could filter the Internet for all adults.  
King said that the board has discussed these issues at great length already.  Tweet 
provided materials for the new board member.   

 
7. BUSINESS 
 

A. Expenditure Approval 
MOTION:  Marilyn Butler moved and Jack Burkman seconded approval of the 
accounts payable, payroll and payroll payables as presented.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

B. Three Creeks Library Capital Facility Area Expenditure Approval 
MOTION:  Marilyn Butler moved and Karen Peterson seconded approval of the 
Three Creeks Library Capital Facility Area expenditures.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

Burkman asked for an update on the lost book refunds.  Duitman said that 
the library provides an average of 20 refunds per month to patrons who 
bring in their lost books asking for refunds.  Quarterly, library staff also 
reviews the database for books that have come back without a patron 
request for refunds.  Last month’s bills included these quarterly refunds, 
which is why the number seemed unusually high.  

 
C. 2005 Board Committee Assignments 

King said he contacted all board members to arrange the 2005 committee 
assignments.  The board agreed to the assignments, attached.   
 

D. Resolution 2005-1: Budget Resolution #05-03 
Duitman explained that the 2005 budget was submitted to the library 
board in September.  At that time, she talked with all four county offices 
to find out the estimates for library revenue from new construction.  In 
November, an amended budget was brought to the board because Clark 
County’s new construction came in a bit higher than anticipated.  During 



FVRL Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes, January 10, 2005 Page 3 

the last few days of December or the first few days of January, Duitman 
traditionally receives information about changes in the amounts, which she 
did again this year.  New construction came in higher for all four counties.   
 
Duitman said the draft budget presented tonight reflects the pre-certified 
numbers given by the county with a few hundred dollars added to it at 
their recommendation.  Final certified numbers would be received in the 
next week or so.  King asked if the board would need to amend the budget 
again when the certified numbers come in?  Duitman said that there would 
be an amended budget in April 2005 for expenditures, but not likely 
another one for revenue except to show actuals. 
 
Burkman asked for more clarification about the certification from the 
counties.  Duitman said that Cowlitz County was not able to give us a 
number until January 3, as they had just put in a new accounting system.  
Also, figures from Yale Valley didn’t come in until January 4.  Skamania 
County had a rebate on taxes that impacted the library’s revenue.  King 
said the board understands these are situations not within the library 
district’s control.  He also noted that the district is limited to a 1% revenue 
increase per year except for new construction.  Inflation is more than 1%.  
King recognized staff for coming pretty close in their early revenue 
estimates.   
 

MOTION:  Marilyn Butler moved and Karen Peterson seconded approval of 
Resolution 2005-1, Budget Resolution #05-03 as presented.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
E. Battle Ground Site Recommendation 

 
y Board Committee and Staff Reports 

Peterson explained that the committee met and also discussed in 
executive session real estate issues in acquiring land for building a 
new greater Battle Ground Community Library.  The board had asked 
staff to look at what each of the site options would bring in terms of 
liabilities as well as services.  Peterson said Friends of the Battle 
Ground Community Library would do the fundraising but the board is 
responsible for the purchase of the property and any negotiations 
related to it. 
 
Ziegman provided a written staff report to all in attendance (it includes 
letters of support from the public).  The sites being considered are:  

o Prestige Development’s new Gardner Center on the corner 
of SR 503 and 199th Street 

o A larger facility on land adjacent to the current site at the 
corner of Parkway and Main in cooperation with the City of 
Battle Ground 



FVRL Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes, January 10, 2005 Page 4 

o The Gold Medal Group and Management Group’s planned 
Battle Ground Center development just east of Grace Ave. 

Ziegman recommended that the board approve moving forward with 
the Battle Ground Center because it has good access, adequate 
parking, would offer a ground-floor library rather than a second floor, 
has good proximity to other destinations, is in a central location, the 
pad is of adequate size and it offers the lowest cost.  He noted that the 
site meets the criteria in the board’s Siting Library Facilities policy.   
 

y Public Comments 
Jane Higgins said that she is a member of the Friends of Battle Ground 
Community Library and that she and her husband would head the 
capital campaign to raise funds to build the new library.  She 
encouraged the board to vote yes for this.  She noted that children born 
when the building committee originally formed are now turning 21.  
On behalf of the Friends, Higgins said she deeply appreciates the 
board’s time, effort and consideration and hopes the project moves 
forward. 
 
Anna Cross agreed with Higgins’ comments.  She said that the Friends 
agree that this will be the last really good chance they have of getting a 
decent sized library in Battle Ground, and strongly urged the board to 
take action.  King said that the board truly appreciates the help and 
support the Friends has given all these years.  It was acknowledged 
that Friends President Alex Mintz has been very dedicated too.  King 
said the board has confidence in the Friends to develop community 
support for this project.  Ziegman acknowledged that there were a 
number of others in the audience who came in support of the Battle 
Ground project.  R. Smith acknowledged the enthusiasm of the Battle 
Ground Friends, saying that it’s very similar to that of the La Center 
Friends.  Both groups began with a small number of dedicated leaders 
who were inspired. 
 
Janeen Johnson asked why the Battle Ground Center offers the lowest 
cost?  Ziegman said staff has agreed with the developers that they 
would not divulge the details of the offers until an offer was 
confirmed.  He also noted that libraries are a tremendous draw to 
businesses surrounding the area where they are located, and cited the 
library located inside Westfield Shoppingtown as an example. 
 

y Board Discussion/Action 
King acknowledged how fortunate the library is to have several offers 
to consider.  
 
Burkman said that the board spent time discussing the options in 
executive session and that these are really great options.  He also noted 



FVRL Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes, January 10, 2005 Page 5 

that the library has a great group of Friends advocating the 
recommended location.  Burkman said that it’s time to take action on 
this.  Board members agreed. 
 

MOTION:  Karen Peterson moved that the FVRL Board of Trustees recognizes the 
need for a new Battle Ground Community Library and supports the Friends of the 
Battle Ground Community Library in their intent to secure sufficient funds to build 
a new library through fundraising. Further, Peterson moved that the Board 
authorize the Library Executive Director to negotiate an agreement with the 
developers of the Battle Ground Center for land for a new Community Library 
serving the greater Battle Ground area.  Jack Burkman seconded the motion and it 
carried unanimously. 
 

Peterson asked Ziegman about next steps.  Ziegman said he hopes to bring 
an agreement for board consideration to the next meeting. 
 

8. REPORTS 
 

A. Serial Solutions and Chilton’s Auto Repair Library 
District Reference Coordinator Tom Taylor gave a special presentation 
about two of the library district’s electronic database subscriptions: Serial 
Solutions and Chilton’s Auto Repair Library.   
 
Taylor explained that a serial is a magazine.  FVRL subscribes to a 
number of databases, and combined these databases offer the full-text of 
approximately 8,000 magazines.  A company called Serial Solutions 
developed a product to make it easier to find which database has which 
magazine subscription.  Taylor performed several searches to show the 
ease with which magazines and articles can be found.  He noted that many 
specialized professional journals that the library would otherwise not 
subscribe to are available to users through these databases.  This feature is 
available now via in-house Electronic Resource computers and will be 
available to users via the library’s Web site soon. 
 
Taylor noted that when the library migrates to its new automated system 
next fall, the ability to go straight to a magazine subscription from the 
library’s catalog would be incorporated. 
 
Taylor then demonstrated the use of Chilton’s Auto Repair Library 
database, which is available to users both in the library and remotely.  The 
database contains all the information that is in the Chilton’s manuals.  
There are photographs of many specific automotive components, such as 
the engine compartment, along with specific details on how to do repairs 
with diagrams and step-by-step instructions.  Since it’s available from 
home, Taylor said it is much more convenient for people to make 
automotive repairs at home or work without having to leave their project.  



FVRL Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes, January 10, 2005 Page 6 

Taylor also noted that the database includes wiring diagrams that are no 
longer available in Chilton’s print editions.  The board thanked Taylor for 
his informative and useful presentation. 
 

B. Branch News 
Devlin noted that she had provided a written report to the board.   
 
Community Librarian Sean McGill gave a report on activities at the 
Washougal branch.  McGill is a member of the board for the local family 
center.  The library provides the center with Discovery Kits containing 
books, toys, and other materials for parents and their young children.  
Story times are also given at the center.  The Washougal library has 
partnered with the school district and ESD 112 for the BRIDGES grant.   
 
McGill also noted that he’s on the board for Washougal’s Old Town, 
which includes local businesses and agencies.  A benefit of his 
involvement with his group is that area businesses provided coupons to the 
library for summer reading prizes.  The branch also provides programs and 
tours to children in HeadStart. 
 
A local poetry group meets at the branch every month.  Their talented 
group members have read with recognized poets from Reed College and 
have had poems published.   
 
McGill has been building a cooperative relationship with the adjacent 
Community Center group to share space.  Where previously the library 
was only able to accommodate 85 people for a summer reading program, 
it drew over 175 people at last year’s event held at the Community Center. 
 
McGill acknowledged the hard work of his dedicated staff that helps to 
make all these programs possible, and thanked the administration and the 
board for their support. 
 
King expressed amazement at the wide range of services being offered by 
the Washougal library.  He thanked McGill for an inspiring report. 
 

C. Bookmark Contest 
Turpen shared information about the library district’s 2005 Bookmark 
Contest for school age children.  The contest has been offered every other 
year for the past two decades.  More than 6,000 entries were received from 
across the district during the previous contest.  Turpen shared examples of 
the previous contest’s winning bookmarks as well as a full-color article 
done by The Columbian.  Sponsors for this year’s contest are The 
Columbian and the FVRL Foundation.   
 



FVRL Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes, January 10, 2005 Page 7 

Two very entertaining short video clips done by students to promote the 
contest were viewed.  Young Adult Services Coordinator Trish Segal was 
recognized for working with the students to help produce the videos.   
 
Vanlaanen noted that four large advertisements would run in local 
newspapers to promote the contest. 
 

D. Strategic Planning Update 
Ziegman said that staff are preparing for the second meeting of the citizen 
strategic planning committee, scheduled for January 19.  The final 
recommendations from the committee and staff will then be brought to the 
board for discussion at the April retreat.   
 
Vanlaanen provided the board with copies of the staff reports that were 
sent to the planning committee.  She noted that a staff representative from 
each of the teams that worked on the reports would give a short 
presentation to the planning committee.  Ziegman added that 24 
employees along with administration were involved in preparing these 
responses.  He said it provided an outstanding opportunity to involve 
middle management and representatives from the Union in the process, 
with everyone feeling very engaged.   
 

E. FVRL Foundation 
Shirley Morgan gave a report on behalf of Foundation Director Rick 
Smithrud, who was unable to attend (see attached). 
 

9. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Ziegman reported that Library Legislative Day is scheduled for February 17.  
Board members and citizens are encouraged to attend, as this is a day when 
library supporters visit their legislators to talk about library issues.  Library staff 
that participate take a personal vacation day. 
 
Most of our branches were closed for a week in January 2004 due to snow.  
Ziegman said he had expected that this would cause the overall circulation for the 
district to go down, however, circulation continued to rise with just over a 1% 
increase in 2004.  King said that libraries everywhere seem to be experiencing the 
same trend, demonstrating that there is a strong ongoing need for public libraries. 
 
Ziegman said he plans to provide an update on the books by mail program at next 
month’s meeting.   

 
10. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

None. 
 
11. BOARD COMMENTS 

R. Smith expressed her congratulations to the Battle Ground Friends. 



FVRL Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes, January 10, 2005 Page 8 

 
12. NEXT REGULAR MEETING 

The next regular meeting will be on Monday, February 14 [meeting location was 
moved to the First & Clark Building in Battle Ground to allow for a public 
workshop beginning at 5:00 p.m. on the Battle Ground library project]. 

 
13. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 
 
 

These minutes were approved at the February 14, 2005 meeting 



 
 
 

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT 
Board of Trustees 

 
 

2005 Committee Assignments 
 
 

 
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE: Jerry King (Chair) 
 Karen Peterson 
 Jack Burkman 
 Alternate: Elena Smith 
 
 
BUDGET COMMITTEE: Jack Burkman (Chair) 
 Marilyn Butler  
 Rose Smith 
 Alternate: Jerry King 
 
 
POLICY REVIEW COMMITTEE: Merle Koplan (Chair) 
 Jerry King  
 Elena Smith 
 Alternate: Jack Burkman 
 
 
FOUNDATION LIAISON:   Merle Koplan  
    Alternate: Jerry King 
 
 
FACILITY PLANNING COMMITTEES: 

 Vancouver Clark/Cowlitz Skamania/Klickitat 
Chair: Merle Koplan Karen Peterson Elena Smith 
 Jerry King Rose Smith Marilyn Butler 
 Jack Burkman Jerry King Jerry King 
Alternate: Rose Smith Elena Smith Jack Burkman 

 
 
 
 
Revised 1/10/05 


